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Introduction and Summary

Please state your name, occupation, and business address.
My name is Jonathan F. Wallach. I am Vice President of Resource Insight, Inc.,

5 Water Street, Arlington, Massachusetts.

Please summarize your professional experience.

I have worked as a consultant to the electric-power industry since 1981. From
1981 to 1986, I was a research associate at Energy Systems Research Group. In
1987 and 1988, I was an independent consultant. From 1989 to 1990, I was a
senior analyst at Komanoff Energy Associates. I have been in my current
position at Resource Insight since September of 1990.

Over the past thirty years, I have advised and testified on behalf of clients
on a wide range of economic, planning, and policy issues relating to the
regulation of electric utilities, including: electric-utility restructuring; wholesale-
power market design and operations; transmission pricing and policy; market-
price forecasting; market valuation of generating assets and purchase contracts;
power-procurement strategies; risk assessment and mitigation; integrated
resource planning; mergers and acquisitions; cost allocation and rate design; and
energy-efficiency program design and planning.

My resume is attached as Exhibit JFW-1.

Please describe your involvement in Case No. 9149.

I have assisted the Office of People’s Counsel throughout the course of this
proceeding. As part of my work in this case, I have assessed the need for new
capacity, estimated the market value of demand response resources, evaluated

responses to a Request for Proposals for demand response resources (“Gap
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RFP”), analyzed filings by various parties, and assisted in settlement

negotiations.

Have you testified previously in utility regulatory proceedings?
Yes. I have sponsored expert testimony in more than fifty state, provincial, or
federal proceedings in the U.S. and Canada. Exhibit JFW-1 includes a detailed

list of my previous testimony.

On whose behalf are you testifying?

I am testifying on behalf of the Office of People’s Counsel.

What is the purpose of your testimony?

On July 13, 2011, Energy Curtailment Specialists, Inc. (“ECS”) filed a motion
seeking approval of proposed amendments to two contracts for the sale of
demand response capacity to Delmarva Power and Light Company
(“Delmarva”) and Potomac Electric Light Company (“PEPCO”), respectively.
This motion indicates that ECS failed to meet its obligations under the two
contracts to deliver specified megawatts of demand response capacity during the
2011-2012 Delivery Year, and seeks to remedy that failure to perform with
amendments to the two contracts that would retroactively reduce ECS’ capacity
obligations for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year.

On January 4, 2012, ECS filed a second motion proposing an additional
modification to the Delmarva and PEPCO contract prices for the 2011-2012
Delivery Year, and seeking to amend its contract with Delmarva in order to
reduce its capacity obligation for the remaining term of the contract. Finally, on
February 1,2012, ECS filed direct testimony by William Chen in support of the
two motions.

The purpose of this testimony is to respond to Mr. Chen’s testimony. In

particular, this testimony addresses ECS’ proposal to compensate ratepayers for

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 2
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the harm from its failure to perform by modifying contract prices for the 2011-

2012 Delivery Year.

Please summarize your findings and conclusions.

Pursuant to the provisions of its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO, ECS is
obligated to provide a fixed and certain amount of demand response capacity
over the four-year terms of those contracts. In exchange for the guarantee of
delivery of a certain amount of capacity over all four years of the contract, ECS
is paid a contract price that exceeds the market price for that capacity. The
Commission approved these contract prices, even though such prices were
expected to exceed market prices, in order to secure the guaranteed delivery of
capacity over the four-year term of the contracts.

ECS’ failure to meets its 2011-2012 delivery obligations constitutes a
material breach of the terms of its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO and
causes substantial direct harm to ratepayers. Contrary to ECS’ assertion, the
economic damage from this failure is not limited to the 2011-2012 Delivery
Year. In approving these contracts, the Commission imposed an obligation on
ratepayers to pay more for delivered capacity over the four years of the contracts
than it would have cost to purchase that capacity through the RPM markets.
According to the Commission, the payment of that premium over market was
reasonable in order to ensure guaranteed delivery of a fixed and certain amount
of capacity in all four years of the contracts. By its own admission, ECS is
unable to guarantee delivery of contractual capacity throughout the term of the
contract. Absent such a guarantee, it would be contrary to the public interest for
ratepayers to pay an insurance premium that was intended to compensate ECS

for providing that guarantee.

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149  March 7, 2012 Page 3
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Based on RPM market prices, I estimate that the economic harm to
ratepayers from ECS’ failure to perform to be about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL
$. END CONFIDENTIAL million. Delmarva and PEPCO offer a reasonable
approach for mitigating the harm to ratepayers from ECS’ breach of
performance.! However, ECS rejects this approach and offers a woefully

inadequate remedy in its place.

What action should the Commission take to remedy ECS’ failure to meet its
obligation to guarantee delivery?

Given the material harm to ratepayers from ECS’ breach of contract, and given
ECS’ unwillingness to provide reasonable remedy for such harm, the
Commission should direct Delmarva and PEPCO to terminate their contracts

with ECS pursuant to the default provisions of those contracts.

The Gap RFP Process

Please describe the process that led to the execution of the ECS contracts.
Delmarva and PEPCO each entered into contracts with ECS pursuant to
Commission orders in this proceeding. In its November 6, 2008 order, the
Commission directed the four investor-owned utilities to issue Requests for
Proposals for demand response resources for the period June 1,2011 to May 31,
2016. The Commission ordered the procurement of demand response capacity in
order to address a potential capacity shortfall in the Mid-Atlantic region of PJM

and, in particular, to “serve as insurance against the possibility that the in-

'In its recently issued Order No. 84715, the Commission found that this approach provides a

reasonable remedy for the economic harm from EnerNOC’s failure to meet its capacity obligations
in the 2011-2012 Delivery Year.
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1 service dates of the TrAIL and PATH transmission projects are delayed past

2 June 2011 and June 2013, respectively.”?

3 In Order No. 82511, the Commission approved the selection of ECS to
4 provide demand response capacity to Delmarva and PEPCO.3 In approving
5 these contracts, the Commission determined that the contract prices, while
6 greater than expected market prices, were reasonable on the basis that:

7 ... the demand response resources bid into the Gap RFPs offer an

8 opportunity to obtain low-cost insurance against highly disruptive

9 reliability events, however unlikely they might be.... The Commission

10 finds that procurement of modest demand response resources now

11 represents a reasonable, low-cost hedge against demand growth and

12 potential reliability shortfalls.*

13 Q: Please describe the terms and conditions of the two ECS contracts.

14 A: Except for the megawatt amount of the capacity obligation, the terms and
15 conditions of the two contracts are substantially the same. The contracts have
16 four-year terms that extend from June 1, 2011 through May 31, 2015. In
17 addition, both contracts require a constant amount of delivered megawatts for all
18 four years of the contract term.> Such deliveries must be from capacity resources
19 located in the contracting utility’s Maryland service territory.

2 Letter Order, Case No. 9149, November 6, 2008, p. 7.

3 The Commission also approved the selection of a number of other winning bidders for
contracts with all four investor-owned utilities.

4 Order No. 82511, Case No. 9149, March 11, 2009, p. 8.

5 “Delivered” quantities are not delivered in the sense that the purchasing utility takes title to
the demand response capacity for the purposes of meeting PJM capacity obligations. Instead, the
supplier is obligated to enroll a certain amount of capacity in PYM’s Emergency Load Response
program, to bid that amount into the Base Residual Auction, and to pay the purchasing utility all
revenues received from bidding that amount into the Base Residual Auction. In return, the
purchasing utility is obligated to pay the supplier the product of the contract price and the
“delivered” quantity.

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 5
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For the 2011-2012 Delivery Year, demand response capacity must be
certified as Interruptible Load for Reliability (“ILR”) capacity, and must not
have been bid into the Base Residual Auction (“BRA”) for the 2011-2012
Delivery Year. For the remaining three years of the contracts, demand response
capacity must be certified and bid into the BRA for each year as Demand
Resource (“DR”) capacity. In all years, the full amount of the ILR or DR
capacity must be enrolled in PIM’s Emergency Load Response (“ELR”)
program.

Finally, contract payments in each delivery year are set at the product of
the capacity obligation and the difference between the contract price and the
RPM clearing price for demand response resources for that delivery year.6 No
payments will be made for 2011-2012 capacity, since the contract price for the
2011-2012 Delivery Year in both contracts is set at the 2011-2012 RPM clearing
price for ILR resources of $110.04/MW-day.

Proposed Contract Amendments

Why is ECS seeking to amend its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO?
ECS seeks to amend its contracts in order to remedy a breach in its obligation
under those contracts. According to its two motions and Mr. Chen’s direct
testimony, ECS was unable to meet its contractual obligations under either
contract for capacity deliveries for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year. Specifically,
ECS failed to enroll sufficient ILR capacity in the ELR program to fulfill its
2011-2012 capacity obligations in either the Delmarva Maryland or PEPCO

6 Under this settlement mechanism, the supplier would pay the buyer in any delivery year

where the RPM clearing price exceeds the contract price.
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Maryland service territory. ECS notes that it was able to enroll an additional
amount of DR capacity in the ELR program for 2011-2012, although such
capacity does not qualify under the provisions of the contracts to meet the
capacity obligation for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year. Nonetheless, even if the
additional DR capacity were qualified to meet 2011-2012 capacity obligations,
ECS would still have fallen short of its obligations for the 2011-2012 Delivery
Year under the contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO.

In addition, with respect to its contract with Delmarva, ECS seeks to
reduce its capacity obligation for the remaining three years of the contract term,
because it does not believe that it will be able to enroll sufficient additional

capacity in the ELR program to meet the current obligation.

To what extent did ECS fall short of its capacity obligations for the 2011-
2012 Delivery Year?

According to the first motion of July 13,2011, ECS was able to meet only about
BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l END CONFIDENTIAL of its obligations
under the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts, when counting both the ILR and DR
that it enrolled in the ELR program. Specifically, ECS secured BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL . END CONFIDENTIAL MW of ILR and DR capacity,
or BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l% END CONFIDENTIAL of its BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL l END CONFIDENTIAL MW obligation, in Delmarva’s
Maryland service territory. In PEPCO’s Maryland service territory, ECS secured
BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l END CONFIDENTIAL MW of ILR and DR
capacity, or BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l% END CONFIDENTIAL of its
BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I END CONFIDENTIAL MW obligation.

What is ECS’ explanation for this failure to perform?

According to Mr. Chen:

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 7
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This disappointing performance was not for lack of trying, but rather
because of fierce competition for these MWs, and in the case of DPL,
simply may not be available in sufficient quantity to be delivered.”

Mr. Chen also notes that ECS enrolled capacity outside of the Maryland
service territories for Delmarva and PEPCO, but within the RPM zones for
Delmarva and PEPCO, “under the assumption that such MWs would count

toward its requirement under the contracts.”3

How might ECS have overcome the “fierce competition” for customers in
order to meet its obligation?

ECS might have been able to enhance the competitiveness of its offers by
increasing payments for customers’ load reductions or by offering other energy-

related services to eligible customers.’

Are there provisions of the contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO that
might have led ECS to believe that it could rely on DR outside of Maryland
to meet its capacity obligations?

To the contrary, Section 3.1.1 of those contracts explicitly requires that the

capacity obligation be met with DR located in Maryland:

During the Term, Supplier shall provide the Committed Capacity Amount
to PIM from Capacity Resources located in Company’s Maryland service
territory.... [Emphasis added.]

How does ECS propose to amend its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO

to address the shortfall in the 2011-2012 Delivery Year?

7 Direct Testimony and Exhibits of William Chen, Case No. 9149, February 1, 2012, p. 3.

81d.

9 However, doing so might have reduced ECS’ profits from meeting its capacity obligations
under its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO.
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In order to address this shortfall, ECS proposes to amend certain provisions of
its contracts with Delmarva and PEPCO, so that: (1) DR capacity would be
allowed to count toward ECS’ capacity obligations for the 2011-2012 Delivery
Year; and (2) the capacity obligations for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year would
be reduced to the amounts of ILR and DR capacity that ECS was able to enroll
in the ELR program for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year. In other words, ECS
proposes to eliminate its 2011-2012 capacity shortfalls by retroactively restating

contractual obligations to amounts actually enrolled in the ELR program.

How does ECS want to change its capacity obligation for the remainder of
its contract with Delmarva?

ECS proposes to reduce its current capacity obligation by BEGINN
CONFIDENTIAL END CONFIDENTIAL, from BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL END CONFIDENTIAL MW to BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL IEND CONFIDENTIAL MW, for the 2012-2013, 2013-
2014, and 2014-2015 Delivery Years.

Why is ECS seeking to reduce its capacity obligation for the remainder of
the Delmarva contract?

According to Mr. Chen, ECS currently has BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL .
END CONFIDENTIAL MW of DR capacity under contract, or more than
enough capacity to meet its proposed capacity obligation of BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL IEND CONFIDENTIAL MW. In addition, ECS estimates
that there are about 15 MW more of available DR in Delmarva’s Maryland
service territory that has not yet been enrolled in the ELR program. Thus, by
ECS’ own estimate, there appears to be adequate available DR to meet its
current capacity obligation of BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I END
CONFIDENTIAL MW. In fact, of that 15 MW, ECS appears to be in

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 9
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negotiations to secure an additional BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL § END
CONFIDENTIAL MW of DR capacity, which when added to the BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL . END CONFIDENTIAL MW currently under contract
would be sufficient to meet its current BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I END
CONFIDENTIAL MW obligation. Nevertheless, ECS apparently has little
confidence that it will be able to secure all of the capacity currently under
negotiation or any of the remainder of the 15 MW of available DR capacity. As
aresult, ECS proposes to reduce its capacity obligation to a level slightly below

the amount currently under contract.

Has ECS provided a reasonable basis for approving a permanent reduction
in its capacity obligation under the Delmarva contract?
No. ECS has failed to provide a reasonable basis for its estimate that there is
only 15 MW of DR potential remaining in Delmarva’s Maryland service
territory. This estimate of remaining potential appears to be based on a rule of
thumb used by ECS to determine the fotal potential in a service territory.
However, this rule of thumb apparently substantially understates total potential
in Delmarva’s service territory, since it indicates a total potential (25 MW) that
is half the amount of DR capacity that has already been enrolled (50 MW).10
Moreover, ECS has not explained why it is unable to procure the additional
BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL . END CONFIDENTIAL MW of DR capacity it
would need to meet its current BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I END
CONFIDENTIAL MW obligation. In particular, ECS has not explained why it

10 In contrast, in testimony filed in this proceeding, EnerNOC estimates a total achievable

potential of about 70 MW in Delmarva’s Maryland service territory. Netting out the 50 MW that is
already enrolled in the ELR program, EnerNOC estimates that there is about 20 MW of remaining
DR potential, or 33% more than the 15 MW remaining potential estimated by ECS. See Testimony
of Herb Healy in Support of Settlement Agreement, Case No. 9149, January 4, 2012, pp. 16-17.

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 10
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Q:

believes that it is unlikely to secure the BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL B END
CONFIDENTIAL MW of capacity currently under negotiation and whether
these negotiations are stalling over the price ECS is willing to pay for
customers’ load reductions. It would not be reasonable to reduce ECS’ capacity

obligation simply because it improves ECS’ bottom line.

Would ratepayers benefit economically from a permanent reduction in
ECS’ capacity obligation?

Ratepayers would benefit in the sense that a reduction in ECS’ capacity
obligation would reduce above-market contract payments by ratepayers. From
this perspective, ratepayer benefits would be greatest if the contract were

terminated.

Economic Damage from ECS’ Breach of Contract

Does ECS believe that ratepayers have been harmed by its failure to meet
its capacity obligations for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year?

No. According to Mr. Chen, ratepayers have not been directly harmed, because:

... with the benefit of hindsight the MWs were not needed in 2011-12 for
reliability purposes, and the first year pricing mechanism was set so that
ratepayers neither paid nor received payment for the contracted MWs. The
ILR price was already known to be $110.04 prior to execution of the
agreements and the contract price was set to match. So effectively the first
year was a wash for both parties.!!

Do you agree that the capacity amount that ECS failed to deliver was not

needed for reliability purposes?

1 Chen Direct, pp. 5-6.

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 11
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Yes. For that matter, the capacity amount that ECS did deliver for the 2011-
2012 Delivery Year was also not needed. In fact, none of the DR capacity that
ECS is contracted to deliver over the remaining three years of its contracts with
Delmarva and PEPCO may be needed for reliability purposes, since PJM has
already acquired much more capacity than needed to meet minimum reliability
requirements in the RPM auctions for the 2012-2013, 2013-2014, and 2014-
2015 Delivery Years.!2

Nevertheless, none of this is relevant to the matter at hand. The
Commission judged the reasonableness of the ECS contract prices based on an
expectation of guaranteed delivery of a certain amount of capacity in the 2011-
2012 Delivery Year (and thereafter.) In approving the ECS contracts, the
Commission imposed an obligation on ratepayers to pay such prices regardless
of whether the contracted capacity is eventually needed for system reliability.
ECS is likewise obligated to provide the contracted capacity regardless of
whether such capacity is needed to serve load. By its own admission, ECS has

failed to meet this obligation.

Do you agree that there was no economic harm because “the first year was
a wash for both parties’’?

No. There is no merit to ECS’ argument that there was no harm, as it fails to
recognize that the contract price for the three remaining delivery years reflects

the value to ratepayers of a guaranteed amount of demand response in all four

12 Moreover, as indicated by the results reported in the Long-Term Electricity Report for

Maryland by the Power Plant Research Program, there is little risk that this capacity would turn out
to be needed before the end of the 2014-2015 Delivery Year because of unanticipated increases in
customer load or other changes in system conditions that might reduce the expected capacity

surplus.
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1 years of the contract term.!3 Since ECS failed to deliver that guaranteed amount

2 in the 2011-2012 Delivery Year, ratepayers will end up paying too high a
3 contract price in the remaining years of the contract for the value received.
4 In other words, as the Commission recognized in approving the selection
5 of winning bidders, ratepayers will pay an insurance premium — a premium on
6 expected market price — over the next three delivery years in order to guarantee
7 the delivery of a certain amount of demand response capacity in all four years of
8 the contract. Ratepayers will suffer economic harm from ECS’ breach of
9 contract, because they will pay an insurance premium over the remaining term
10 of the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts for four years of guaranteed delivery,
11 even though ECS will have failed to deliver the guz{ranteed amount in all four
12 years.14

13 Q: Would it be reasonable for ratepayers to pay a premium on market price
14 for delivery of uncertain amounts of capacity?

15 A: No. If there is no more certainty in delivery via contract than through the RPM

16 market, then there is no additional value to ratepayers from procuring capacity
17 through contract rather than through RPM. Whether purchased through a non-
18 firm contract without guarantee of delivery or through the RPM market,
19 ratepayers should pay no more than RPM market price.

13 As Mr. Chen notes, per the terms of the Gap RFP, the contract price for the first delivery
year was fixed at the RPM market price for ILR capacity. The additional value for guaranteed
delivery in the first delivery year (and all other years) would therefore have been reflected in the
contract price for the remaining three delivery years.

14 The fact that ratepayers are not paying a premium on the 2011-2012 market price does not
imply that they are not paying for firm delivery in the 2011-2012 Delivery Year. As noted above,
per the terms of the RFP, the 2011-2012 contract price was fixed at the RPM market price for ILR
resources. Consequently, the insurance premium for all delivery years would have been reflected in
the contract price for the remaining three delivery years.

Direct Testimony of Jonathan Wallach e Case No. 9149 e March 7, 2012 Page 13
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Q: Have you estimated the economic damage from ECS’ failure to guarantee

2 delivery of its capacity obligations?
3 A: Yes. Asindicated in Table 1, I estimate that the economic harm to ratepayers
4 from ECS’ breach of the Delmarva contract to be about BEGIN
5 CONFIDENTIAL $. END CONFIDENTIAL million. As shown in Table
6 2, I estimate that the damage from ECS’ breach of the PEPCO contract amounts
7 to about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $. END CONFIDENTIAL million. The
8 total economic loss to ratepayers from ECS’ failure to perform is thus about
9 BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $. END CONFIDENTIAL million.
10 Table 1: Damage from Breach of Delmarva Contract (CONTAINS
11 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION)
Committed | Delivered Contract
Capacity Capacity Price RPM Price | Economic
Delivery Amount Amount ($/UCAP ($/UCAP Loss
Year (Peak MW) [ (UCAP MW) | MW-day) MW-day) ($000)
2012-2013 | | SHIE | $139.73 s |
2013-2014 [ | SHE | $245.00 sl
2014-2015 ] || SHI | s$125.47 s
Total S |
12
13 Table 2: Damage from Breach of PEPCO Contract (CONTAINS
14 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION)
Committed | Delivered Contract
Capacity Capacity Price RPM Price | Economic
Delivery Amount Amount ($/UCAP ($/UCAP Loss
Year (Peak MW) [ (UCAP MW) | MW-day) MW-day) ($000)
2012-2013 [ ] | sHE | $13337 | sHEEE
2013-2014 | B B SHE | $247.14 s
2014-2015 [ | B S | $125.47 $
Total s
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Remedy for ECS’ Breach of Contract

What would be a reasonable remedy for ECS’ failure to guarantee delivery
of its capacity obligations under the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts?

In comments filed in this proceeding on September 16, 2011, Delmarva and
PEPCO proposed a reasonable method for mitigating the harm from ECS’
breach of contract.!5 As the Commission found in its Order No. 84715 regarding
the settlement agreement with EnerNOC, this proposed approach (“PHI
approach”) appropriately and reasonably reflects the extent to which the
insurance premium has been devalued by ECS’ failure to guarantee delivery of
its capacity obligation.

As described in the September 16, 2011 comments by Delmarva and
PEPCO, the PHI approach would reduce contract prices in the remaining three
years of the contracts by a percentage amount commensurate with the
percentage shortfall in ECS’ capacity deliveries. In the case of the Delmarva
contract, ECS is obligated to deliver BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l END
CONFIDENTIAL MW of DR capacity per year, for a total of BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL I END CONFIDENTIAL MW over the four-year term of
the contract. As discussed above, ECS failed to deliver BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL . END CONFIDENTIAL MW in the first year of the
contract. Thus, under the PHI approach, Delmarva contract prices would be
reduced by the ratio of BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL END
CONFIDENTIAL MW to BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL END
CONFIDENTIAL MW, or BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL % END
CONFIDENTIAL. Likewise, for the PEPCO contract, contract prices would be

IS5 This approach, with minor modifications, has been adopted in the EnerNOC settlement

agreement in this proceeding.
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reduced by the ratio of BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I END CONFIDENTIAL
MW (the shortfall in the first year) to BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I. END
CONFIDENTIAL MW (the total obligation of four years), or BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL . % END CONFIDENTIAL.

The revised contract prices under the PHI approach are shown in Table 3.

Table 3: Contract Prices under the PHI Approach (CONTAINS
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION)

Delmarva PEPCO
Original Revised Onginal Revised
Delivery Contract Contract Contract Contract
Year Price Price Price Price

20122013 | SN | <HEEE | SHEEN |

2013-2014 | SN | HEEN | CHEEN |

20142015 | SHEEE | SsHEEE | BN |

To what extent would the PHI approach mitigate the harm from ECS’
breach of contract?

As indicated in Tables 4 and 5, I estimate that application of the PHI approach
would reduce the economic loss for ratepayers to about BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL $. END CONFIDENTIAL million in total for the two
contracts. Relative to the BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $- END
CONFIDENTIAL million damage under existing contract prices, application
of the PHI approach would reduce ratepayer losses from ECS’ breach of
contract by about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $ END CONFIDENTIAL
million, or about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL % END CONFIDENTIAL.
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Table 4: Economic Losses with Revised Delmarva Prices (CONTAINS
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION)

Committed | Delivered Contract
Capacity Capacity Price RPM Price | Economic
Delivery Amount Amount ($/UCAP ($/UCAP Loss
Year (Peak MW) [ (UCAP MW) | MW-day) | MW-day) ($000)
2012-2013 [ B SHE | $139.73 s |
2013-2014 ] -] S | $245.00 s |
2014-2015 || N | SHE | $12547 SHIL
Total sl

Table 5: Economic Losses with Revised PEPCO Prices (CONTAINS
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION)

Committed | Delivered Contract
Capacity Capacity Price RPM Price | Economic
Delivery Amount Amount ($/UCAP ($/UCAP Loss
Year (Peak MW) | (UCAP MW) | MW-day) MW-day) ($000)
2012-2013 | B SHIE | $133.37 s
2013-2014 B B S | $247.14 s |
2014-2015 ] | SHE | 12547 | S
Total ST |

What is ECS’ response to the remedy proposed by Delmarva and PEPCO?
ECS rejects the PHI approach, but appears to be of two minds as to the basis for
its rejection.

According to Mr. Chen, no remedy is called for under the terms of the
contracts, because, as discussed above, ratepayers have not been harmed by
ECS’ breach of contract.

In contrast, ECS’ second motion of January 4, 2012 admits that ECS’
breach of contract harmed ratepayers: “The ratepayers are entitled to fair,

‘direct, actual damages’ for ECS’ failure under the contracts.”!6 However, the

16 Second Amended Motion of Energy Curtailment Specialists to Amend Agreements, Case No.

9149, January 4, 2012, p. 7.
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1 second motion argues that the PHI approach provides a remedy that exceeds the

2 direct damages caused by its breach:

3 Conversely, the PHI approach, as applied to ECS, fails this test by

4 providing damages over the remainder of the agreements of a magnitude

5 well in excess of the breach that occurred in 2011/12.17

6 ECS asserts that the PHI approach is punitive, since the revenue reduction

7 from application of the PHI approach is disproportionate to the shortfall:

8 As measured over the life of the contracts, ECS has failed to deliver to

9 Pepco and Delmarva BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL % END
10 CONFIDENTIAL and BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL % END
11 CONFIDENTIAL, respectively, of the MWs promised; however, the
12 PHIEnerNOC approach would result in a penalty equivalent to a revenue
13 reduction of nearly BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL .% END
14 CONFIDENTIAL.!8

15 Q: Isthere any merit to this proportionality argument?

16 A: No. The PHI approach is not punitive, since the remedy does not exceed the

17 direct economic damage from ECS’ breach of contract. In fact, the PHI remedy

18 would amount to only a fraction of the direct damage. As discussed above,

19 ratepayers will suffer an economic loss of about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL

20 $. END CONFIDENTIAL million from ECS’ shortfall in the first delivery

21 year. The PHI remedy would not exceed or even eliminate that loss, but only
71d, p.6.

18 Id., p. 2. While the PHI approach would reduce contract revenues by about BEGIN
CONFIDENTIAL .% END CONFIDENTIAL, it would reduce total revenues to ECS,
including RPM revenues, by only BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL l% END CONFIDENTIAL. The

ercentage impact on total profits to ECS would be greater than this BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL

% END CONFIDENTIAL impact on total revenues to the extent that ECS incurs costs to enroll

and administer customers in the ELR program, to manage the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts, or
to interface with PJM.
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reduce it by about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $' END CONFIDENTIAL
million, or about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL I% END CONFIDENTIAL.

2

3 Q: What remedy has ECS offered for its breach of contract?

4 A: According to ECS’ second motion, ratepayers were directly harmed as a result

5 of the fact that they “did not receive MWs they were promised” for the 2011-

6 2012 Delivery Year.!9 From ECS’ perspective, ratepayers were harmed simply

7 because they paid for capacity they did not receive in that one year:

8 ECS did not deliver the contracted MWs in 2011/2012. Accordingly, the

9 proper methodology should be to credit the utilities (and thus ratepayers)
10 for the amount of overpayment received during that year.20
11 If seller promised to sell 12 eggs for $1 each and only delivered 6 eggs,
12 contract damages would obviously be $6. The result should be no different
13 here.2!
14 Consequently, ECS proposes to remedy its breach by applying the PHI
15 approach solely to contract prices for the 2011-2012 Delivery Year. ECS
16 estimates that this limited application of the PHI approach would provide a
17 credit to ratepayers of about BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL $. END
18 CONFIDENTIAL thousand.2?
19 Q: Is ECS’ proposal a reasonable remedy for the economic harm from its
20 breach of the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts?

Yo, p.s.
2051d,p.2.

21 14., footnote 2.

22 At a hearing before the Commission on December 14, 2011, Mr. Chen on behalf of ECS

proposed a penalty of $15,000 for its breach of contract, arguing that this amount was “equitable”
based on the fact that “there was no money exchanged” for capacity in the 2011-2012 Delivery
Year. (Transcript, Case No. 9149, December 14, 2011, p. 99.) Mr. Chen does not explain in his
direct testimony why ECS no longer believes that its initial penalty proposal is appropriate.
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No. As discussed above, the economic damage from ECS’ breach of contract is
not limited to one delivery year. Instead, the economic loss extends over the life
of the contracts, because ratepayers are obligated to pay a premium on market
prices for a delivery guarantee that has been rendered essentially worthless by
ECS’ failure to honor that guarantee.

Contrary to ECS’ claim regarding its egg example, the economic harm is
not due to the fact that the buyer paid $12 for 12 eggs, but only received 6
eggs.?3 Instead, the harm results from the fact that the buyer agreed to pay more
than market price for those eggs to guarantee delivery of 12 eggs and the seller
failed to honor that guarantee. In the instant case, it’s as if a buyer agrees to
enter into a four-year contract for firm delivery of 12 eggs in every year. In
exchange for that guaranteed supply, the buyer agrees to pay the market price of
$1 in the first year and $1.25, or 25 cents more than market, in the remaining
three years. In total, the buyer would pay an insurance premium of $9 over the
total market cost of $48, reflecting the value to the buyer of firm supply of 48
eggs over four years. Absent that guarantee, it’s unlikely that the buyer would
have agreed to pay more than market price for the contracted egg deliveries in
any year, since she would face comparable risk of being short on eggs whether
she purchased the eggs through a forward contract or on the spot market.2*

By failing to deliver 12 eggs in the first year, the seller has violated the
contract guarantee and thereby rendered it essentially worthless to the buyer. As

aresult of seller’s failure to honor the guarantee in the first year, the buyer is no

23 To the contrary, there would be no harm in this case, since the buyer presumably would pay

only $6 for the 6 eggs delivered.

24 In fact, the buyer might have required a discount to the market price as compensation for the

obligation to take whatever amount of eggs were delivered by the supplier, regardless of need.
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longer assured of a guaranteed éupply in the remaining three years of the
contract. To the extent that the contract remains in force, the buyer will suffer an
economic loss of 25 cents per delivered egg, since she will pay an insurance
premium on all future deliveries even though she is no longer guaranteed

delivery of any of those eggs.

To what extent would ECS’ proposed remedy mitigate the harm from its

breach of contract?

I estimate that ECS’ proposed remedy would reduce the total economic loss to

ratepayers from its failure to perform by a mere BEGIN CONFIDENTIAL
% END CONFIDENTIAL.

What do you recommend with regard to ECS’ proposed remedy?

The Commission should reject ECS’ proposal. Instead, the Commission should
find that: (1) ECS has failed to perform a material obligation under the
provisions of the Delmarva and PEPCO contracts; and (2) the failure to perform
constitutes an event of default. Accordingly, the Commission should direct
Delmarva and PEPCO to terminate their contracts with ECS pursuant to the

default provisions of those contracts.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes.
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